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. UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION S5

In the Matter of: EPA-5-13-113(a)-IL-07

Imperial Plating Company
Chicago, IHlinois

" Proceeding Under Sections 113(a)(3) and
114(a)(1) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.
8§ 7413(a)(3) and 7414(a)(1)

R T U

Administrative Consent Order

I. The Director of the Air and Rédiatidn Division, U.S. Environmental Protection |
Agency (EPA), Region 3, is issuing this Order to Imperial Plating Company (Imperial) under
Sections 113(a)(3) and 1 14(a)(1) of the Clean Air Act (CAA), 42 U.S.C. §§ 7413(a)(3) and
T414(a)(1). | ‘

Statutory and Regulatory Backeround

2. Section 112(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(d), aqthorizes EPA to promulgate
regulations for particular industrial sources that emit one or more of the hazardous air polutants
(HAPs) listed in Section 112(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(b), in sigmficant quantities. EPA
codifies these regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 63.

3. Pursuant to Section 112(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(d), EPA promuigated
the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP): Area Source
Standards for Plating and Polishing Operations at 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart WWWWWW
(Subpart WWWWWW)on July 1, 2008. 73 Fed. Reg. 37728 (July 1, 2008).

4 Section] 12(1)(3) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(3)(3), and 40 CFR. §63.4,
prohibit the owner or operator of any source from operating.such source in violation of any

NESHAP applicable to such source.



5. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.11504(a), Subpart WWWWWW applies to the owner
or operator of a plating and polishing facility that: 1) is an area source of H;A,P emissions; 2) uses
. or has emissions of compounds of one or more plating and polishing metal HAPs; and 3) among
other things, is engaged in non-chromium electroplating.

6. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11504(a)(2), defines an “area source of
HAP emissions™ as any stationary source or group of stationary sources within a contiguous area
under common control that does not have the potential to emit any single HAP at a rate of 1 0
tons per year (tpy) or more and any combination of HAPs at a raté of 25 tpy or more.

7. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 CF.R. §§ 63.11504(a)(3) and.63.l 1511, defines a
“plating and polishing metal HAP™ as any compound of cadmium, chromium, lead, manganese,
and nickel, or.any of these metals, other than lead, in the elemental form, with excepltions not
relevant here. | |

- 8. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11511, defines “electroplating™ as an
electrolytic process that uses or emits any of the plating and polishing metal HAP, in which
metal 10ns in solution are reduced onto the surface of the work piece (the cathode) via an
electrical current. |

9. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.11505(a), Subpart WWWWWW applies, in part, to
each new affected source, which includes each tank at a subject facility that contains one or more
of the plating and polishing metal HAPs and is used for non-chromium electroplating.

10. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.1 lSO?(a), requires the owner or operator -
of, among other things, an affected existing non-cyanide electroplating tank that contains one or

more of the plating and polishing metal HAPs and operates at a pH of less than 12 to comply



with one of three emission standards, including the use of a wetting agent/fume suppressant in
the bath of the affected tank.

11. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11511, defines "wetting agent/fume
suppressént” as any chemical agent that reduces or suppresses fumes or mists from a plating and
polishing tank by reducing the surface tension of the tank bath. |

12. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11509(a), requires t}.1_e owner oOr operator
of an affected source to submit an Initial Notiﬁcation that includes the information specified in
40 C.FR. § 63.9(b)(2)(1) through (iv) of the General Provisions of the NESHAP and a
desc;ription of the compliance method for the affected gource. A

13. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 CF.R. § 63.1 1509@)(4), requires the owner or.
operator cf a new affected source with a startup date after July 1, 2008 to submit an Initial
Notification when thé source becomes subject to this subpart.

14. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.11505 and 63.11511, defines “new
source” as any affected source for which the owner or operator commenced construction or
reconstruction after March 14, 2008.

15.  Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11506(c), requires the owner ‘or operator
of a new affected source with a startup date after July 1, 2008 to achieve compliance with tﬁe
provisions of Subpart WWWWWW upon initial startup of the affected source.

16.  Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.11508(a) and 63.11509(b), requires the
owner or.Operator of an affected source to submit a NotliﬁcatiOH of ‘COmpliance Status before the
close of business on the compliance date specified in 40 C.F.R. § 63.11506 and that includes 1) a
list of affected sources and .the plating and poli.shing metal MS used in, or emitted by, those

sources; 2) the methods used to comply with the applicable management practices and



equipment standards; 3) a description of the capture and emission control systems used to
comply with the applicable emissién_standards; and 4) a statement by'the owner or operator of
the affected source as to whether the source is in compliance with the épplicable standards or
other requirements.
7. Subbart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11508(c)(1)(ii) and (iv), in patt, requires
the owner or operator of an affected electroplating tank subjectto the requirements in 40 C.F.R.
§ 63.11507(a) and that uses a wetting agent/fuine suppressant to cAomply‘ with Subpart |
WWWWWW, to demonstrate initial compliance by stating in the Notification of Compliance
Status: that the owner or operator: 1) adds a wetting agen-t/fume suppressant to the bath according
| to manufacturer’s spegiﬁcations and instructions; and i) has implemented the applicable
management practices specified in 40 C.F.R. § 63.11507(g), as practicable.
18. Subpart WWWWWW,_ at 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.11509(e} and (f), require the owner or
_ operatox; of an affected source to kEEp; 1) copies of the Initial Notification and Notiﬁcation of
Compliance Status that it submitted and éll documentation suppprting these notifications; 2) the
records gpeciﬁed in 40 C.F.R. § 63.10(b)(2)(1) through (i11) and (xiv); and 3) the records required
to show continuous compliance with each applicabl.e management practice, aé‘speciﬁed in
40 C.F.R. § 63.11308(d). These records must be kept for a minjmu'm of five years following the
date of each occurrence, Iﬁeasmement; maintenance, corrective agt'ion, report, or record.

19. Subpart-\V\K"W\lVWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11508(d)(2), requires the owner or
operator of an affected source to prepare an annual compliaﬁce certification to demonstrate
continuous compliance, in accordance with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 63.11509(c).

20 Subpart WWWWWW,_ at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11508(d)(3), requires the owner or

operator of, among other things, an affected electroplating tank that contains one or more of the



plating and polishing metal HAP and is Subject to fhe requirements in 40 C.F.R. § 63.11507(a),

and that uses a wetling agent/fume suppressant to comply with Subpart WWWWWW to
demonstrate continuous compliance ac;c‘:or.ding to 40 C.F.R. § 63.11508(d)(3)(1) through (111), by,
among other things, Stating in the annual compliance certification that it has added wetting
agent/fume suppressant to the bath éccording to the nianufgcturer's specifications and _
nstructions.

21 Subpart WWWWWW_ at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11509(c), requires the owner or operator
. of an affected source to prepare an annual certification of compliance report in accordance with
40 CFR. § 63.11509(c)(1) through (7).

22. Subpéu’t WWWWWW, at 40 CF.R. § 63.11509(c)(1). requires the owner or
operator of, among other things, an affected electroplating tank tﬁat is subject ;o the requirements
in 40 C.F.R. § 63.11507(a)(1) to state in the annual compliance certification that it has added the
wetting agent/fume suppressant to the bath accoraing to the manufacturer’s specifications and
1nstructions.

23.  Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11509(c)(6), requires the owner or
operator of an affected source to state in its annual compliance certification that it has
implemented the applicable management practices specified in 40 C.F.R. § 63.11507(g), as
practicable.

24. Subpart WWWWWW, at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11509(c)(7), requires the owner or
operator of an affected source to prepare each annual compliance report no later than January 31
of the year immediately folldwing the I;eporting period,-e.md requires that each annual compliance
report must be kept in a readily-accessible Jocation for in.Spector reviéw. The owner or operator

is not required to submit these reports unless a deviation from the requirements of Subpart



WWWWWW has occurred during the reporting vear, in w-hich case, the annual compliance
report much be submitted alon g with the deviation report, and postmarke_ci no later than January
31 of the year immediately following the reporting period. |

25. Under Section 113(a)}(3) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)3), the Administrator
of EPA méy issue an order requiring compliance to any person who has violated or is violating
the NESHAP regulations. The Administrator has delegated this authority to the Director of the
Air and Radiation Division. |

26. The Administrator of EPA may require an}.f person who owns or operates an
emission source to make and submit reports under Section 114(a)(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 7414(a)(1). The Administrator has delegated this authority-to the Director of the Air and
Radiation Division. |

Findings

27.  Imperial owns and operates a plating facility located at 7030 West 60™ Street,
Chjcago', [llinois (the Facility), where it conducts, among other things, zinc and nickel
“electroplating,” as that term 1s defined at 40 C.F.R. § 63.11511.

28. The Faciiity: 1} is an “area source of HAP emissions,” as that term is defined at
40 C.F.R. § 63.11504(a)(2); 2) uses or has emissions of compounds of one or more “plating and
polishing metal HAP,” as that term is defined at 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.11504(a)(3) and 63.11511; and
'3) among otherthings, is engaged in non-chromium electroplating, and therefore, Impenal is
subject to the requirements of Subpart WWWWWW. See 40 C.F.R. § 63.11504(a).

29. Impenal owns and operates an “ermmission source™ within the meaning of Section
114(a)(1) of the CAA, 2.12 U.S.C. § 7414(a)(1). Therefore, Imperial is subject to the requirements

of Section 114(a)(1).



30. On February 6, 2013, EPA inspected the Facility to assess Impenal’s compliance
Wiﬂ;l the CAA. |

31. On Apnl 12, 2013, EPA issued an information reciuest to Imperial under Section
114(a) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7414(a), with regard to determining compliance with, among
- other things, Subﬁart WWWWWW. dn April 25,2013, EPA received Imperial’s response to thet
information request, which was submitted by Accu-Labs, Inc., Imperial’s consultant.-

32, Impenal operates tanks subject to Subpart W\V\%’\VWW at the Facility, including
a zinc/nickel-electroplating tank. ‘ |

33. Impenal began operating the zinc/nickel-electroplating tank in May 2012, and
thergfore the zinc/nickel-electroplating tank is a “new source,” as that term is defined at
40 C.F.R. §§ 63.11505(c) and 63.11511.

34. Impenal adds a “wetting agent/fum'e suppressant,” as that term is defined at
40 CF.R. § 63.11511, to the bath of the zin;:/nicke]—electroplating tank.

35. Imperial failed to subrﬁit the Initial Notification required under 40 C.F.R.
§ 63.11509(a)(4) for the zinc/nickel-electroplating tank upon initial startup of the tank.

36.  Imperial failed to submit the Notification of Compliance Status required under
40 C.F.R. §§ 63.11508(a) and 63.1 1509(b) for the zinc/njckel-ele(;trqplating tank upon initial |
startup of the tank. | |

37. For the year 2012, Imperial has not demonstrated continuous compliance with the
applicable management practices‘and equipment standards of Subpart WWWWWW because
Imperial failed to prepare an annual corﬁpliance certification required under 40 C.F.R.

§ 63.11508(d)(2) for the zinc/njckel-elf_:ctroplating tank that wncludes the informétion described



in 40 C.F.R. § 63.11509(c). Imperial was required o prepare the annual certification of
compliance report no {ater than Januvary 31, 2013.

Compliance Program

38. By September 3, 2013, Imperial must submit an Initial Notification to EPA for the
zinc/njékel—e]ectroplating tahk at the Facilitﬁ; mn accordax.lce with 40 C.F.R. § 63.11509(a) and
keep a copy of the Initial Notification and all documents supporting it at the Factlity.

39. By September 3, 2013, Imperial must submit a Notification of Compliance Status
to EPA for the zinc/nickel-electroplating tank at the Faci].ity im accordance with 40 C.F.R.

§§ 63.11508(a) and 63.11509(b) and keep a copy of the Notiﬁcatio.n of Compliance Status and
all documents supporting it ét the Facility.

40, By January 31 of each year, Imperial must prepare an annual certification of
compliance report that includes the zinc/nickel-electroplating tank at the Facility in accordance
with 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.11508(d)(2) and 63.11509(c) and keep it in a readily-accessible location at
the Facility. Inaccordance with 40 C.F;R. § 63.11508(d)&)(1), Impernial must certify in eac‘h
annual certification of compliance report that it has imp}erlnenled the applicable management
practices of 40 C.F.R. § 63.11507(g), as practicable, and, in accordance with 40 C.F.R 
§§ 63.1 1508(d)(3)tiii) and 63.11509(c)(1), ceﬁify in the report that Imperial has added the
wetting agent/fume suppressant to the bath of the zinc/nickel-electroplating tank according to the
manufacturer’s specifications and instructions. By February 28, 2014, imperial must submit the
annual certification of compliance report to EPA that 1t had préi)a:ed for reporting year 2013.

For succeeding reporting years, Impenal is not required to submit the annual certification of
co_mpliam;e report to EPA unless a deviation from the requirements of Subpz;rt WWWWWW has

occurred during the reporting vear, in which case, Imperial shall submit the report to EPA along



witﬁ the deviation report, which .shall be pqstmarked or delivered no later than J anuary 31 of the
year im_mediately following the reporting period. |
41, By .the.effective date of this Order, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §63.1 1509(6),
Imperial shall keep the records specified in 40 C.F.R. § 63.10(b)(2)(i) through (iii) and (xiv),
which relate to the general recordkeeping requirements for affected sources subject to the
NESHAP, and the records required to show continuous comphance with each ap?licable
management practice, as specified in 40 C.F.R. § 63.11508(d), for the Zinc/nickel—electrqplating
tank at the Facility.
42. By the effective date of this Order, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 63.11508(b), -
Imperial shall be in compliance at all times with the applicable management practices in
40 C.F.R. § 63.] 1l507(g) ar;d all other applicable requirements of Subpart WWW\W’W and the
CAA.
43. Imperial must send all _dQCuments and reports required by this Order to:
Aﬁention: Comlpliance Tracker (AE-17J)
Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 -
77 W. Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, lllinois 60604

General Provisions

44, Imperial agrees to the terms of this Order and further agrees that it will not contest
the basis or validity oi-” thi.s Order. lmperialtwaives any and all remedies, claims for relief and _.
othén\fise available nights to judicial or admuinistrative review-‘that Imperial may have with
reépect. to any issue of fact or law sét forth in‘ this Order, including any nght of judicial review
under Chapter 7 of the Admunistrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-706.

45.  This Order does not affect Imperial’s responsibility to comply with other federal,

state, and local laws.



46. This Order does not restrict EPA’s authority to enforce Section 112 of the CAA,
42 U.S.C. § 7412, or any other section of the CAA.

47.  Nothing in this Order limits the EPAs authority to seek appropriate relief,
including penalties, under Section 113 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413, for Impenal’s violations
of Subpart WWWWWW or any other violations of the CAA:

48. Failure to comply with this Order may subject Impenal to penalties of up to
$37,500 per day for each violation under Section 113 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § .7'413, and
40 CFR. Part 19.

49. The terms of this Order are. binding on Imperial, its assigneeé, and successors.
Imperial must give notice of this Order to any successors in interest prior to transferring
ownership and must simultaneously verify to EPA, at the above aadress, that 1t has given the
notice.

50. Imperial may assert a claim of brusiness confidentiality under 40 C.F.R. Part 2,
Subpart B, for any porﬁon of the information it submits to EPA. Information subject to a
business .confidentiality claim is available to the public only to ;Lhe extent allowed by 40 C.F.R.
Part 2, Subpart B. If Impernial fails to assert a business confidentiality ;:laim_. EPA may make all
submitted infofmation available, without further.notice, to any member of the public who
réquests 1it. Emission data provided under Section 114 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7414, is not
entitled to confidential treatment under 40 C.F.R. Part 2, Subpart B. “Emission data” is defined
at40 CF.R. § 2.301.

51.  This Order is not subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act, 44 U.S.C. § 3501 et

seq., because it seeks collection of information by an agency from specific individuals or entities

10



as part of an admintstrative action or investigation. Submit the response to this Order without
. staples; paper clips and binder clips, however, are acceptable.

52. EPA may use any information submitied under this Order in an administrative,
civil judicial, or criminal action.

53.  This Order is effective on the date of signature by the Director of the Air and
Radiation Division. This Order will te.rminate two vears from the effgctive date, provided that

Imperial has complied with all terms of the Order throughout its duration. =

X
05)s 3 J ( /\
Date George@n
Directo
, Air and ation Division

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Re gion 5
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I, Loretta Shaffer, certify that [ sent the Administrative Consent Order, EPA-5-13-113(a)-IL-07,
by certified mail, return receipt requested, to: :

“Anthony Kuziel

Vice President

Imperial Plating Company
7030 West 60" Street -
Chicago, Illinois 60638

I also certify that I sent a copy of the Adrmmstratwe Consent Order EPA-5-13-113(a)-IL- 07 by
first-class mail to:

Ray Pilapil

Manager

Bureau of Air, Compliance and Enforcement Section
Ilinois Environmental Protection Agency

P.O. Box 19506

Springfield, llinois 62794

on the 90 A __day of _(15057 ' , 20

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT_NUMBER:‘?GO? (640 0000 7676 /000




